
President, Board of Directors
Crescent Sanitary District
P.O. Box 265

Crescent, OR 977 33-0265

January 9,2025

Department of Justice
Civil Enforcement Division
State of Oregon
Attn: Mr. Andrew T. Reilly
Senior Assistant Attorney General

Subject: Acknowledgment of Default Notice, Proposed Remedy Plan, and Request for
Disadvantaged Community Classification

Dear Mr. Reilly,

We acknowledge receipt of your letter dated November 4,2024, regarding the Crescent Sanitary

District's default under Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Agreements R25100 and

R25lO2, and Water Fund water Project Financing contract No. Y17003.

The District recognizes the seriousness of the outlined defaults and regrets the circumstances

leading to this situation. First let me reiterate again the financial constraints CSD has faced since

its inception as delineated by previously published financial reports, studies, and audit reports for

the past 3 years as listed in exhibits A through C.

a. Limited clientele expansion

b. Runaway construction cost from initial budget of $3 million to $1 I plus million

c. Loans requested and granted with obvious knowledge of not being capable of servicing

future proj ected payments

d. Inability to employ upper-level personnel licensed and qualified to maintain a public

sanitary service facility due to its remote isolated location and inability to offer and afford

current market wages.

The District faces ongoing financial challenges as mentioned above due to its limited revenue-

generating capacity. Despite efforts to increase service rates and operational efficiencies, these

measures have not sufficed to meet our funding requirement to maintain the existing sewer plant

much less the debt service obligations.

Since I recently assumed the role of President of CSD's Board of Directors, and with the support

of the former CSD manager and the accountant, CSD has taken significant steps to reduce labor

costs. These efforts have brought the budget down from $26 I ,048 to $ 1 65,000, despite the

organization's need for additional labor.



This reduction aims to ensure sufficient funds for regular operations and to establish a viablepayment plan for loans currently in default,as highlighted in your letter. The 
"osi 

savings have
been achieved through measures such as reducini thJworkforce by eliminating a field |peratorposition, forgoing the hirin^g of a planned field operator, and leaving the managlr,s position
vacant for the remainder of the current fiscal year.

ExhibitsD tt[ough F, portray our cunent financial position (depreciation and loan interest
expense has been excluded from the following profit and loss reports):

Exhibit D - Service fncome projections

As detailed in Exhibit C,.!SP- faces significant ohallengos in achieving growth potential,
compounded by the low likelihood of implementing utility rate increaJes sufficient to cover
operational expenses and loan obligationi. To meeiits financial responsibilities, CSD would
need to raise rates by approximately $160-$175 per month.

A similar conolusion was reached by SSSD.org during their evaluation of CSD,s facility,
conduoted at the request of the Klamath County Comilissioner (refer to Exhibit B).

Exhibit E - CSD Statement of Cash Flows.

Displays a continued depletion of cash assels as projected by exhibit A and C. For the period
ending 3l December 2024 csD cash asset has bien deplet.i by $z:,ss+

Exhibit F - csD Financial statements on 31 necember 2024,

Management's overall cost roduction efforts has provided for the current fiscal year (Lrn-Dec
2024) a net income of.$23,465 (excluding depreciation and loan interest) ruffrci.nt to cover
equipment major repairs and budgeted asset aoquisitions

Exhibit G - Going Concern.

Asreported by Note 9 of exhibit A and page 4 of exhibit C, CSD's is unable to meet its current
and future debt service obligations. Quoting note 9 of Sensiba's notes to Financial Statements in
their audit report for FY 2)2fwhichended 30 J:urrre2024 o'...there is substantial doubt about its
ability to continue as a going concem.,,

A proposal fot a payment_plan as requested by your letter of November 4,2}24,would be at the
present tirne futile as would place management'in a decision mode of either funiing CSD,s
rgduged operational expenses with an understaffpersonnel or servicing loan 

"o.mit 
nents. It

should be noted that neither option will have suflicient funds in the near future as CSD,s repairs
and maintenanoe woes for their Gilchrist system with an outdated infrastructure is prone to
failure in the near future as reported by ss-SD.org Team (exhibit B). - r

In consideration of the above facts, we respectfully submit the following proposal:



1. Request for Disadvantaged Community Classification

We propose that Crescent Community and its sanitary district be classified as a "Disadvantaged

Community" under Administrative Order No.: DEQ-5-2023. This designation would allow the

District to qualify for financial relief, including but not limited to:

. Loan forgiveness.

. Temporary interest moratoriums on outstanding loans.

. Eligibility for grants and subsidies aimed at supporting essential public services.

Given the economic profile of the Crescent City community and the District's ongoing financial

constraints, we believe this classification is justified and aligns with the objectives of the

Administrative Order.

This classification would be instrumental in providing the financial relief necessary to ensure the

sustainability of essential public services provided by the District.

2. Request for Interest Moratorium

As a public sewer services company in Oregon, we are seeking to request a loan interest

moratorium due to existing financial hardship. Relevant guidance can be found within the

framework of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) a program managed by the

Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).

3. Exploration of Additional Financial Support

We are committed to identifying and securing alternative funding sources, including federal and

state grants, to stabilize our financial position. Extensive research is ongoing under relevant

statutory references that include Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 340, Division 54, and

Oregon Revised Statutes 468.423 to 468.440, which define administrative and financial
guidelines for these programs

4. RCAC Rate Study

During the month of October 2024, CSD's manager contacted Ms. Dessa Wells (exhibit G) and

was successful in obtaining a rate study for the Crescent Community and Gilchrist to be

conducted by RCAC at no cost to CSD. Currently study is on hold, and we will pursue re-

activation in the coming weeks.

5. Engagement with Stakeholders

The District will actively engage with community members and stakeholders to ensure

transparency regarding proposed measures, including public discussions on rate adjustments and

cost-sharing strategies.



6. Submission of a proposed Repayment plan

By June l,2025,based on any successful aotions obtained as listed above, the District will
submit a detailed repayment plan that will include:

' A realistic timeline 
!9r repayment of Loan Agreements R25100 and R25102, and

Financing Contract No. yl 7003.

' A revenue enhancement strategy, including RCAC study results if a proposed rate
increases is determined and exploration of-alternative frrnding rorr"r'.. ' 

--

' A feasibility analysis to ensure the repayment plan is practical and achievable.

7. Implementation of Financial Oversight Measures

The District will continue with its existing enhanced financial oversight mechanisms, including
regular audits and budget reviews. As a result of on-going significant-cost reductions, CSD is
currently completing a supplemental Budget for boJd aipro-var and submission.

we are oommitted to resolving this matter in collaboration with all stakeholders and ensuring the
Crescent Sanitary District's long-term financial health and operational viabiiit. -

Thank you for your oonsideration ofthis proposal.

Sincerely,
James Simmons, President
Board of Directors
Crescent Sanitary Dishict

Exhibits:

o Exhibit A: Fy 2024 AuditReporr

o Exhibit B: SSSD.org CSD,s Facility Review

o Exhibit C: Accountant's Assessment and Concems

o Exhibit D: CSD Fy 20ZS Service Income projections

o Exhibit E: CSD Statement Cash Flows Jul-Dec 2024

o ExhibitF: CSD Financial Statements Jul-Dec2024

r Exhibit G: CSD Manager and RCAC emails on Rate Study
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CRESCENT SANTIARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Year ended June 30, 2024

Our discussion and analysis of Crescent Sanitary District (the District) financial performance

provides an overview of ihe Oistricts' financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30,2024.

Please read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which follow this

Management's Discussion and Analysis'

Financial Highlights

As of June 30, 2024,the District's ending net position was $5,525,831. Of this, the amount

invested in capital assets net of related debt was $5,390,958. The ending net position d_ecreased by

$275,719 compared to prior year, thus resulting in an unrestricted net position of $134,873. The

decrease in nei position was-primarily related to depreciation on the infrastructure assets which

were placed in service in the prior year'

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the District's

basic financial statements. These basic financial statements comprise four components: l)
Statement of Net Position; 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and

3) Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) Notes to the Finanoial Statements. This report also contains

required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements

themselves.

The District operated a sewer system. The financial statements are designed to provide readers

with a broad overview of the Diitrict's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Net position may serve over time as a useful indioator of a government's financial position. ln the

case of the District, assets exceed liabilities by $5,525,83 I on June 30,2024-

Of the District's net position , g8o reflects its investment in capital assets net of accumulated

depreciation.

Property tax revenues remained consistent with the prior year while charges for services increased

approximately l8% compared to prior year.

EXHIBIT A



CRESCENT SAI\ITIARY DISTRICT
MANAGEIMNT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Year ended June 30,2024

0verview of Financial Statements

Net position over time, may serve as a useful indioator of a government's financial position. An
overview of the Dishict's statement ofNet position is as foll6ws:

An overview ofthe District's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position is as
follows:

Assets
Curent and otrer assets

Capihlassetg net

Rigfrt-to-use assets, net

TotalAsseb
Liabilities

Cunent llabilirbs

Long-term lbbilities

ToalLhbilitbs
Net Position

Net investnent in oapital assets

Urrcstbted
TotalNet Posifron

Operatirg revenue

Operatinge:penses

Net operating i,rconrc (loss)

Non-ope,rating r€venue and expense

Changss innetpositbn

Net posifion - beginning ofyear
Net position - end ofyear

ftme 30,2024

229,673 $
10,652,553

65,817

10,947,043

377,393

5,043,919

5,421,212

5,390,959
134,973

5,525,931 $

Jurp 30, 2023

185,355

10,995,953

75,691

1 1,146,9g9

lll,7g4
5,233,655
5,345,439

5,623,599
t77,g5l

_l!9l,ssg_

YearEnded YearEnded
Iwr- 30,2024 Jtme 30, 2023

$ 374,087 $ 315,696
(655,083) (530,246)
(280,996) Q14,550)

5,277 1,297,953

Q75,7lg) 1,073,303

5,801,550 4,729,247
$ _1f25,!11_ $_l!gl-,ssg_

EXHIBITA



CRESCENT SANTIARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSN

Yearended June30,2024

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The District's investment in capital assets totaling $10,652,553, includes land, easements,

equipment and vehicles. The wastiwater system, net of accumulated depreciation, was reported as

$i0,41+,S69 and equipment & vehicles were $96,362. Additionally, the District reported $94,545

of right to use assets, net of amortization, related to its building lease.

The District was obligated to various government agencies related to the construction of the

Crescent and Gilchrisir.*., system projects, totaling $5,262,354. The District did not make any

payments against their debt obligations during the fiscal year. The District's lease obligation

ieiated to its right of use building lease was $65,817 as of June 30,2024.

Additional information on the District's capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the notes

to the financial statements at Notes 3,4 and 5.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

We anticipate charges for services of approximately $355,620 will be collected from customers of

the Distriit in the upcoming fiscal yeai. lnoluded in the District's budget for fiscal year 2024-25

are capital outlays of $35,000.

The District did not budget for its debt service obligations for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025

as Oregon Local Budg.I Lu* does not allow an Oregon municipatity to budget a negative fund

balanci and projectei-."r"nr" is not sufficient to corer annual operating co11s an^d debt service

requirementr. piUt service payments have been defened until December 31 ,2024 for the Oregon

Business Development Department loans. The District is in process of negotiating the Oregon

Department of Environmental Quality loans.

Management and the Board are actively pursuing grant funding and potential modification of grant

terms with the State of Oregon as a means of addressing their inability to fund required debt service

payments in the future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview to those parties interested in

Crescent SanitaryDistrict's frlnances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or r.qu"ri. for additional information may be obtained from the District by writing to PO

Box 265, Crescent, Oregon 97733 or telephone 541-433-2951 '

EXHIBIT A



Statement of Net Position
Year Dnded June 30, 2024

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash

Accounts receivable

Property taxes receivable

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Restricted cash

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land

Easement

Pump grinders

Right of use buildirrg lease, net

Capital assets, net

Equipment and vehicles

Wastewater system

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
Cunent liabilities:

Accoun8 payable

Uneamed revenue

Payroll liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Current portlo& notes payable

Current portion, Iease liability
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities :

Notes payable

Lease liability

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Totalnet position

2024

$ fi1,722
ssg62
1233

7.475

178,492

50,lgl

90,070

364t3
65,633

65,917

45,969

10,414,569

10,947,443

12,575

1At7
r lJ3r
68277

n3A29
10,164

377,393

4988,r66
55,653

5,043,919

s*212t2

5,390,959

134,873

$ 5,525,831

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or oompilation
engagem€nt, and no assurance is provided on them. Finanoial statomonts are prosgntod only for

the year ended Jvne 30, 2A24,
4
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CRESCEI{T SAI{ITARY DISTRICT
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30r 2024

2024

Operating reveruEs:

Charges for services

Total operating revenrcs

Operating expenses:

Anmrtization

Confacted services

Depreciation

Fwl
Irsurance
Miscelhreous
Lbenses, dues and permits

Office e&ense
Rent

Repair & rnairfienance

Travel ard meals

Utilitbs
Wages atd associated payroll costs

Total operating eryenses

Operating bss

Non-operating revenuc and (expense):

Property taxes

Interest income

Otlrer irponre

lrsurarx;e proceeds

Interest e{pense

Total non-operating reventrc and expense

Change in rrct position

Net positiorl beginning

Net positiorl erdng

9,864
63,443

312,004
4,167

11,071

3,078

34,586
15,230

1,200

22,048
272

24,025
154,095

655,083

Q80,996)

37,609
607

933
36,541

(70,413)
5,277

Q75,719)

5,801,550

These financial statements have not been sub.iected to an audit, review or compilation
engagement, and no assuranoe is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30,2024.
5
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30r 2024

Cash flows from operations

Cash received fom custonprs

Cash payrnenb to enployees for services

Cash paynrenb to acquhe servhes and nnteriab
Net cash provlted (used) by operations

Cash flows from non capial ftrancing activitbs
Interest income

Otlrer income

Insurarpe proceeds

Property tax collections

Net cash provided (used) by non capital frnncing activities

Cash flows from capihl financing activities
Acqubitbn of capital assets

loanpaynnnb
Paynrents on base lhbilities
Interest expense on capihl loans and hases

Resticted cash

Net cash provitled (used) by capital frrancing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash - beginning ofyear

Cash - end ofyear

Reconciliatbn ofoperating income to net cash flows
from operating activitbs

O perating inconre (loss)

Adjmtnents to recorpile net inconre to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Deprechtbn and amortizatbn
Changes in working capihl aocotnrts:

Prepakl eryense

Accourts receivable

Accounts payable

Unearned revenue

Accrued interest

Payroll lhbilities

Net cash proviled (tsed) by operatbns

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audig review or compilation
engagemEnt, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30, 2024.
6

2024

$ 359,551

(148,473)

Q2,523)
138,555

607

933

36,541

37,609_

75,690

(7E,604)

(760)
(9,864)

(70,4t2)
(6,1.89)

(165,829)

4E,416

63,306

$ _tfiJn_

$ (280,996)

321,969

27,24O

(15,953)

11,080

1,417

69,277

5,622

$ 138,555

EXHIBITA



CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30' 2024

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of American (.'CAAP") as applied to government units as required

by dregon law. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted

siandard setting board for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity: Crescent Sanitary District (the District) was lormed in 1976 under ORS 450.

t6i Oistiict was formed by assumption of the assets and liabilities of Crescent Sanitary District, a

non-profit organization.

The District is governed by an independently elected board of directors and is tegally separate

from all other entities. It is also financially independent of other state and local governmental

units. It has the power to levy taxes, is responsible for its debts and is entitled to any surplus. The

District is not a component unit of another entity'

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America as applied to govemmental units. The GASB is the

u"."ptrd standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial principles'

The significant policies of the District are described below.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting: the District is a single enterprise similar to a
commercial entity for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, the financial statements are

reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

Rivenues are iecorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incumed, regardless of the

timing of the related cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.

Operating- revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and

aetivering goods in conneition with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The

principal operating revenues of the District is charges to customers for sales and services.

bparuting "*p"nrir 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and

depreciatlon on capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition, including

property taxes, and capital grant financing are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation

engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30, 2024.

EXHIBIT A



CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statemenb

June 30,2024

Budgetaty Policy: Annual budgets, as required by state statutes, are adopted on the cash basis of
aocounting for the t.yT fund.-GAAP require the District to report as a business-typ€ activity by
T: glan enterprise fu$. !!e bydgetary schedules presented reconcile the budgeGry basis to thl
GAAP_requtled ryporting. The budget is prepared by function and activity aoiir maintained on
the cash basis of accounti4g. The budget-dotument-includes aotual information on the past two
yearf, curent year budget information, as well as requested appropriation and estimated revenues
for the ensuing fiscal year.

Theproposed budget is presented by the budget officer to the budget committee. public meetings
are held by_the budget commitee. The budget committee may-make changes to the originil
9*l*9n1. lt : Uyagtt_tommittee approves thi budget dooument to be submittEd to the goveriin!
body of the Distriot. Once the budget document iireceived by the governing body, ttriy hold i
public hearing on a date as published.

After the public hearing, the governing body gives consideration to matters disoussed and makes
amendments to the budget document prior to adoption. However, state statues do n<it allow the
goveming body to increase estimated expenditures for each fund by more than ten percent. The
amount of the total ad valorem taxes to be certified by the county for levy for all funds shall not
exceed tle am911t presgnted !v ttre budget oommittee unless the-budget document is republished
and another public hearing is held.

The goveming body is then required by state statutes to adopt the budget, make appropriations,
and certify the levy of ad valorem taxes for each fund. Except'for the allowance of appropriation
transfers, expenditures cannot exceed appropriations. The livel ofcontrol for appropriations is
exercised at the prograrn_level. The program level consists of, instruotion, support sirvices and
operating contingenoy.- Ulexpected additional resources may be added to the iudget through the
use of a supplemental budget and appropriations ordinance. Original and suppleirental budgets
maybe modified by the use ofappropriationtransfers between the levels of conirol. Suchtransfers
require approval by the governing body. All appropriations lapso at the end ofthe Distict,s fiscal
year.

Cash and Investments For financial reporting purposes, the District considers all highly liquid
investments- with original mgturities of 90 dayJor less to be cash equivalents. Oregin Revised
Statutes authorizod the Dishict to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Agincies, time
certificates ofdeposit, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreornents, and ttre State of6regon Local
Government Investnent Pool.

Prepaid Expenses and ltems: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applioable to future
accounting periods and are reoorded as prepaid items.

These financial statem'onts have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation
engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Finanoial statements are presented,only for

the year ended Juna 30, 2024,

EXHIBITA



CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30' 2024

Utility Reeeivables: Amounts due at year end were considered to be fully collectible' Delinquent

v,vastewater accounts may be turned over to the county tax assessor to become a lien against the

property, which is collecied by the counties or paid upon sale or foreclosure of the property. Under

it,.i.r*i of the lien, the county turns over the past due accounts as collected. The lien process is

performed annually at year end for all past due accounts.

property Taxes: Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1. Collection dates are

November 15, February i5 and May l5 following the lien date. Discounts are allowed if the

amount due is receivedby November 15 or February 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May

l6 are considered delinquent. An allowance for doubtf-ul accounts is not deemed necessary, as

uncollectible taxes become a lien on the property.

Tax revenue is considered received when in the hands of the county as the intermediary collecting

agency. The District qualifies to receive one lump sum distribution, less a 3%o discount for timely

payments, annually.

Capital Assets: the District defines capital assets as assets with an initialcost of more thatr $500

and an estimated useful life extending beyond one year.

Right to Use Assets: The District capitalizes noncancelable leases in accordance with

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 - Leases. The standard

requires leases which are within the scope of the standard, to be capitalized at their net present

vaiue at inception and amortized over the shorter of the life of the lease or the useful life of the

asset.

Lease Liabilities: The District determines if an arrangement is a lease and its classification at

lease inception. Operating lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date of the lease

based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term. The District uses its

incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the lease commencement date to

compute the present value of the lease payments when the implicit rate is not readily determinable.

Right-to-use ("ROU") assets are *"u*rid at lease inception based on the initial measurement of
the-lease liability. The District does not recognize ROU assets or lease liabilities with a tcrm of
twelve months of less. Lease terms do not include options to extend or terminate the lease unless

it is reasonably oertain that the option will be exercised.

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation

engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30, 2024.

9
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June S0r 2024

Equity Classilication: in government-wide financial statoments, equity is classified and displayed
in three components:

Net investment in capital assets: Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and is reduced by the outstanding balance bf any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or i-*f,*uments of those
assets.

Restricted net position: Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by
external groups suoh as creditors, grantors. conffibutors, or laws and regulations of other
govemments; or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislition.

Unrestricted net position: All other net assets not invested in capital assets or restricted.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statcments requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect cenain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordinglyo aotual results
could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events: The Dishiot has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the basio
finanoial statements were available to be issued wtrich is the date of tilr ira.punaunt auditors,
report.

Note 2: Cash

At June 30,2024 the District held cash of $161,903 with a bank balance of $164,14g. oregon
$"ult:a Statute Chapter 295 requires that bank depositories pledge collateral against any publio
fund deposits in excess of deposit insurance amounts. rnis pro-viaes addition?i proiection rorpublic funds in the event of a bank loss. The office of the St"t" Tr"".rrer maintains a list of
finanoial institutions in-which deposis in excess of deposit insurance limits can be held. As of
June 30' 2024 the Districtos bank deposits were not excieded amounts insured by the intc.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District,s deposits may not
be returned to it. state statutes require that all bank deposit in 

"*""*, 
of the FDIC or FSLIC

insurance amounts be collateralized through the Origon State treasurer,s public Funds
Collakralization- Program.-. Thil- program provides u ,-t u.tur" for speoified depositories toparticipate in a shared liability collateral pool.

These financial statements have not been subjeoted to an audit, review or compilation
engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended h;rrre 30, 2024.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30' 2024

Note 3: Capital assets, net

The District's capital asset activity was as follows:

Assets rnt being dePreciated:

Lard
EasenEnt

Grinders
Total assets mt beirg depreciated

Asser being depreciated or armrtized:

Wastewater system

Equbnrent and vehichs

R[ht to we assct - building

Total depreciable assets

L,ess accranuhted deprecbtion for:

Wastswater system

F4uipnrcnt ard vehbhs

Less accrmuhted annrtizatbn for:

R[!t-to-ue - buiHing

Assets being dcprcciatcd

ard amortired

Total assets

Jure 30, 2023

s 90,070 $

36,413

65,633

r 1,400,91 3

83,764

66,006

12,598

11.579.222 78,604

(767,327) (285,023)

(23,s13) (26,981)

( 18,864) (9,864)

(809,704) (321,868)

10,769,518 (243,264)

s t0,961,634 $ (243,264) $

-

Disnositions June 30, 2024

$ 90,070

36,413

65,633
192,1 l 6

11,466,919

96,362

94,545

11,657,826

(1,052,3s0)
(50,494)

(28,728)

(r,r31,572)

10,526,254

Note 4: Lease obligations

In June 2020,the District signed a non-cancelable lease fbr the administrative office with an annual

base lease of $12,000. The lease terminates on June 30,2025. At the end of the initial term, the

District may extend the lease five years at its option. Base rent is fixed annually during the initial

term and any renewal term. Management is reasonably certain the District willexercise its option

and has included the option period in its calculation of the right of use asset and related lease

Iiability.

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation

engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30. 2024.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the X'inancial Statements

June 30r 2024

Principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease tiability are as follows:
Eisgqry-ear - 

principal Interest Total
2425 $ 10,t55$ tlss$ r2p00
2026 10,474 1,526 12,0002027 10,792 1,20g 12,000

2029-2030 34,3g6 1,614 36,000
$ 55.8n S 6rR? * ,,n*

Note 5: Long-term debt

The Dishict's debt activity for the year is as follows:

Jwn30,2023 Additiors

$ 279,884 $ -

6gg,42l

Redrctiors lrur,r-30,2024
Drc WiErin

Ore YEar

Orcgon Brsirrss Developnnrf
Departrrm
Oregon Buirrss Devebpnrrf
DepartrErt

Orcgon Departrelt of
Environrrrdalauaey
OrcgonDepartrrcnt of
EnvironncntalQuatty

3,43g,ggg

853.382

$ 5261,575 $ -$ _

--E

$ 279,9U $ 27,000

6gg,42t 66,102

3,43g,ggg 142,550

953,392 37,777

$ 5-26r,s7s $ 273,429

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation
€ngagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30, 2024.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30,2024

Oregon Business DevelopmentDepartmentLoan Agreement: InJuly 20lT,theDistriotentered
into an lntergovernmental Loan Agreement with the Oregon Business Development Department

(OBDD) with in the amount of $740,000. The agreement was amended in October 2017 to a
maximum borrowing of $1,473,900. The original loan amount of $740,000 bears interest at a rate

of 1.25%. The additional amount of $733,900 bears interest atarate of l.l9o/o. The District made

no payments against the additional loan amounts during the fiscal year. Payments will begin on

both notes in December 2024, under a deferment agreement with OBDD and both notes mature on

the 24th anniversary of the repayment commencement date. Under the terms of the agreement, the

Disfict pledged its (l) full faith and credit and taxing power and (2) net system revenues &s

security to fund amounts due under the financing contract.

Department of Environmental Quality Loan Agreement #1: In Ootober 2018, the District

entered into an Intergovernmental Loan Agreement with the Department of Environment Quality
(DEQ), including two subsequent amendments. Under the terms of the agreements as amended,

the maximum borrowing is $4,000,000. A loan reserve in the amount of $83,332 is required to be

maintained when the repayment term begins, to be in effeot until the loan is paid in full' The loan

bears interest at a rate of 1.55%per annum and requires 60 semi-annual payments of $74,140. ln
addition, the loan calls for annual fees to be paid in the amount of 0.5% of the outstanding loan

balanoe, to be paid semi-annually. During the 2022, the DEQ awarded loan forgiveness in the

amount of $500,000, which reduoed the principal balance to be amortized to $3,500,000. The

District did not make any payments against the loan balance during the fiscal year and is in process

of negotiating with the DEQ.

Department of Environmental Quality Loan Agreement #2:-In April 2021, the Distriot entered

into an Intergovernmental Loan Agreement with the Department of Environment Quality (DEQ)

for a loan amount of $1,000,000. A loan reserve in the amount of $19,024 is required to be

maintained when the repayment term begins, to be in effect until the loan is paid in full. The DEQ

has not closed the loan out as of the date of these financial statements, however payments are

currently expected to begin on August 1,2024. No amortization schedule has been provided by

the DEQ, and the loan is reported as all long-term. The District received disbursoments under this

Ioan in the amount of $868,261 as June 30,2024. The loan bears interest at a rate of .89o/oper

annum and requires 60 semi-annual payments which will be calculated upon loan close out by

DEQ. In addition, the loan calls for annual fees to be paid in the amount of 0.5% of the outstanding

loan balanoe. The District did not make any payments against the loan balanoe during the fiscal

year and is in process of negotiating with the DEQ.

Both DEQ loans pledge irrevocable security interests in the District's net revenues, superior to all
other claims and liens.

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation
engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30. 2024.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Noter to the Financial Statemcnts

lune10,2024

Principal and intorest requircments to maturity are as foilows:

OrcAon Buiness Dqvelop(rcrt lfiro OIErot DEQ Lmnrrl Oegoo DEQ Lsn#2Fiscal Year Erded
JUre 30

2025

2026
2027

20?8

2029

2030-2034

2035-2039
2040-2044

2045-2049
2050-2054

Prircinal
93,r02
47,383
47,947

48.5 t8
49,09s

254,381

269,882

t57,997

Pdrcbal
l4ass0
97,s63
99,08t

100.523

102,189

535,294

578,258

625,A0
674,805

483,855

lggg!-$

Ir!€r!st
93,226

s0,717

49,t9
47551
46,(x,t

t9s,l06
163,14
I 16,730

66.595
I,145

E36,6r0 $

TorI
@

t48,280
t48,280
r48,280

t4E,2E0

?30,400

741,402
?42,400

741,400
492.000

42?6.49E

Imerest Total
27,981 12 I ,083
t0,4t5 57,798
9,851 57,798
9,280 5?,798
8,703 5.1,798

34,612 288,93
l9,l 13 288,995

3,636 161,633

PriEid tntercst Tohl
37,777 -14-ifr @25,618 7A67 33,OEs
25,8{t 7938 33,085
26978 7.007 33,0S5
26,311 6J74 33,085
t34976 3OJ49 165A25
t42,536 22,889 165A25
t49,018 16t07 t65,425
155J96 9.629 t6s125
129.725 2.6rs t32l,40lE'Ei-$@$lE?z$ -t5mi s:-ii55i- s -r,otiF6-

These ffnancial statomcnts havc not been subjected to an audig r€vicw or compilation engaggment, and no assurance is provided on them. Financialstat€ments art pr€sent€d only for the year endi Iune fO, ZOZ+.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2024

Note 6: Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to and destruction

of assets; erors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The District purchased

commercial insurance for general liability and fidelity bonding. Settled claims have not exceeded

coverage in the prior three years.

Note 7: Commitments

The District has committed to pay approximately $328,500 in Oregon DEQ loan fees in future
periods as ofJune 30,2024.

Note 8: Over-expenditure of appropriation

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024,the District overspent its appropriation for personnel

services by $797, its appropriation for materials and seruices by $9,302, and capital outlay by

$25,604.

Note 9: Going concern

The District did not have sufficient cash flow to meet its debt service requirements during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2024, Additionally, it did not budget for debt service requirements in its most

recent adopted budget due to projected cash shortfalls. Management is negotiating loan terms the

with DEQ and OBDD. OBDD has agreed to defer payments on its loan until December3l*,2024.
No agreement for loan term modifications have been negotiated with DEQ at this time. Because

the District is unable to meet its future debt service obligations, there is substantial doubt about its

ability to continue as a going concern.

Management has adopted a budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025 which provides for
ongoing operations, excluding any budgeted amounts to lund debt service obligations.

Management's plans to mitigate the current projected shortfall to meet its obligations include

pursuing additional grant funding and renegotiation of its debt repayment schedules with lenders.

As of the date of this statement, management does not intend to discontinue operations and has

concluded that current projected revenue is sufficient to cover operations into the future, absent

scheduled debt service payments.

Note 10: Subsequent events

Effective July l, 2024, all of the board members of Crescent Sanitary District vacated the board.

New board members were appointed and swom in during September 2024.

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review or compilation
engagement, and no assurance is provided on them. Financial statements are presented only for

the year ended June 30, 2024.
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CRESCENT SANITARY DISTRICT
statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Net position

Budget and Actual - Sewer X'und
Year ended June 30,2024

Revenues:

PropertytilGs

Cturges 6r servhe

Other lnoonrc

Totalreverues

Eroenditulrs:

-

Persormel servbes

Materbland seruhes

Deprechtbn and anprtizathn
Capithloutby

Interest elpense

Cont[ngrrrcies

Tohlexpendihnes

Change in find bahnce

Ftmd Bahnce - luly 1,2023

Fund Bahnce - JurB 30,2024

Original

Budget

$ 36,000 $
316,605

,04
352,725

132,241

l4g,9g3

15,000

69,321

6,000

Final Budget

49,000

327,380

350

375,740

l53,2gg

I 69,91 g

53,000

26,174

402,290

(26,550)

la7,2gg

80,749 $

Actual-

BudgBtary

Basb

$ 37,609

374,097

39,091

449,777

154,095

179,120

78,604

4l l,gl g

37,959

(t3,t27)

24,931

-

372,555

(t 9,830)

100,579

$ E0,74E $

-
The Dbhict budgets the sewer firnd as a governmentalfind on the budget basb ofaccounthg.
Reconcilhtions between the budgetary and actual bases are presented as varhnces in tlre sche,r
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The Ktamath CountyAssessor's Office recenttycompteted thetax bookforthe 2024-2025 fiscatyear
which shows an assessed vatue of properties within CSD of $gg, SSO.ZO3. At a tax rate of $1.03 per

$1 ,000 of assessed vatue, the property tax revenue due to CSD is $39,829.14.

Debt Load: CSD carries substantialdebt from loans used for system construction, with increasing
operationaI costs due to pump faitures and other issues, especiatty with constant root intrusions
within the deteriorating Gitchrist cotlections system.

Revenue Shortfatt: Current property tax and fees for service revenues are insufficient to support
current operations, with an anticipated shortfatt of about $100,000 for the 2024-2025 budget year.

Coveringthis deficit would require an average increase in sewerfees of approximatety $25 per month
for each of the 333 customers (Attachment E).

This budget exctudes loan payments to DEQ and OBDD totating $266,575.40, due this same fiscal
year (hightighted in Attachment G). Spreading that amount over the 333 customers serviced by CSD

would require average increases in sewer fees of $OZ per month. CSD has not made any of the
scheduted payments tisted in Attachment G and is currentty in defautt.

combining the above, the average sewer rates to csD customers would have to increase $gz per

month, on average.

Attachment F detaits some very disturbing facts and conctusions. "On January 3,2024, an
independent audit report compteted by Sensiba Accounting Firm provided in their note 11 - Going
concern (page 19 of their repoft - Exhibit 6)the opinion that it was untikety that the district woutd have
the abitity to meet its obtigations during FY 2024 and into future fiscalyears."

Additionatty, this report, compited by CSD's Accountant, Gitdetatorre Tax & Accounting Dba
BizTaxesl 120, provides, "Exhibit 8 detineates CSD's FY 2025 management's detaited administrative
and operational budget portraying an annual loss at year end June 30, 2025, in the amount of
$99,638. As noted in my previous section CSD Juty 2024Protit and Loss vs Actuat, management's
projected loss for the month of Juty 2024was on target with actuaI resutts."

Without addressing reductions in expenses, on average, sewer fees would have to increase by an
average of $gZ per month to cover the budget shorlfatt as wetl as the debt. Added to the current
average sewer rate of $ZS.SO per month, the average sewer rate to the citizens of CSD woutd battoon
to $t Zt .50 per month.

The retationship between the citizens within the district and the CSD organization is not good and
has been volatite at times. We [earned from CSD staff that the citizens are upset with the current
rates and are distrustfut of the district due to a coupte of factors; the design and construction of the
cotlection system and treatment plant doubting in cost f rom the initiat estimate of about $0.S mittion
to about $t Z mitlion; the faiting of so many brand new pumps within the first year; and dissatisfaction
with frequent btockages and service interruptions. At times tensions within the community and CSD
are so high that CSD personne[ are approached by angry citizens at gas stations, stores, and
restaurants. One disturbing interaction was particutarty disturbing in that a minor chitd of one
emptoyee was approached by an adutt citizen who stated that this person wished to put a buttet in

the face of one of his parents.
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TheKtamathcountyAssessor'sofficerecenttycomptetedthetaxbookforthe 
2024-202Stiseatyear

which shows an assessed vatue of properties within csD of ggg, sgo.2os. At a tax rate of g1.03 per
$t,OO0 of assessed vatue, the propertytax revenue due to CSD.is $gg,g2g.ta.
Debt Load: csD carries substantiat debt from toans used for system construction, with increasing
operational costs due to pump fail.ures and other issues, especiatty with constant root intrusions
within the deteriorating Gitchrist cottections system.

Revenue shortfatt: current property tax and fees for service revenues are insufficient to support
current operations, with an anticipated shortfatt of about $too,ooo for the 2024_2}25budget year.
coveringthis deficit woutd require an average increase in sewerfees of approximately g2s per rnonth
for each of the gg3 customers (Attachment E).

This budget exctudes loan payments to DEe and OBDD totating $Z6e,SZS.a0, due this same fiscatyear (hightighted in Attachment G). Spreaclingthat amount overthe B3o customers serviced by csDwould require average increases in sewer fees of $eZ per month. CSD has not made any of thescheduted payments tisted in Attachment G and is currentty in defautt.

combining the above, the average sewer rates to csD customers woutd have to increase $92 per
month, on average.

Attachment F detaits some very disturbing facts and conclusions. ,.on Januau 3, 2024, anindependent audit report cornpteted by sensiba Accounting Firm provided in their note 11 - Goingconcern (page 19 of their report - ExhibitG)the opinion that itwas untiketythatthe districtwoutd havethe abilityto meet its obtigations during f( zo24and into futurefiscatyears.,,

Additionatty, this report, compited by csD's Accountant, Gitdetatorre Tax & Accounting DbaBizTaxes1120, provides, "Exhibit 8 detineates csD's Fy 2o2smanagement,s detaited administrative
and operational budget portraying an annual toss at year end June 30, 2025, in the amount of
$gg,egg' As noted in my previous section csD Juty 2024 protitand Loss vs Actuat, management,sprojected loss for the month of )uly 2o24was on target with actuat rssults.,,

without addressing reductions in expenses, on average, sewer fees woutd have to increase by anaverage of $gz per month to cover the budget shortfatt as wett as the debt. Added to the current
average sewer rate of $ZS.SO per month, the average sewer rate to the citizens of CSD woutd battoonto $171.S0 per month.

The retationship between the citizens within the district and the csD organization is not good andhas been votatite at times. we tearned from csD staff that the citizens are upset with the currentrates and are distrustfut of the,district due to a coupte of factors; the design and construction of thecotlection system and treatment ptant doubting in cost from the i:nitiat estimate of about $6.5 mittionto about $12 mittion; the faiting of so many brand new pumps within the first year; and dissatisfaction
with frequent btockages and service interruptions. At times tensions within the community and CSDare so high that csD personnel are approached by angry citizens at gas stations, stores, andrestaurants' one disturbing interaction was particutarty disturbing in that a minor chil.d of oneemployee was approached by an adutt citizen who stated that this person wished to put a buttet inthe face of one of his parents.
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Management Representation as Required by Oregon Minimum Standards

Crescent Sanitary District (District) is subject to, and responsible for, compliance with various

laws, rules, and regulations relating to its operation and finances. Among such laws, rules, and

regulations are the requirements prcscribed in Municipal Audit Law (ORS Chapter 297) andthe
Minimum Standards for Review of Oregon Municipal Corporations (OAR 162, division 40)

including, but not limited to:

(a) Deposit ofpublic funds with financial institutions.
(b) Indebtednesslimitations, restrictions, andrepayment.
(c) Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
(d) Public contracts, purchasing, and improvements.
(e) Authorized investment of surplus funds.
(0 Oregon localbudget law
(g) Programs funded with outside sources

The management of the District is aware of the requirements of Oregon laws and administrative

rules concerning each of the above requirements and has complied, in all material respects, with

such requirements.

We are not aware of any violations or possible violations of laws, rules, or regulations, whose

effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording
a loss contingency.

Statement Required by ORS 297.a35 (3)(c)
The Board Members and the District were covered by a $250,000 fidelity bond from July 1,2023
through December 31,2023. Beginning on January 1,2024,the bond was increased to
$1,0-00?ooo.

'bl r wdw Q u{, AAn+,oY 01t,"

,bo<sroN +pxvwsnl-UXZlzznr

Brenda Ashcraft, Office Manager

Nov 27,2024
Date
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Assessment Report: Crescent Sanitary District (CSD)

Prepared by: Joe spendotini and South suburban sanitary District (sssD)Team of Experts

Prepared for: Ktamath county commissioners and newty appointed csD Board of Directors

Executive Summary

This assessment, requested bythe Ktamath countycommissionersfoltowingthe resignation of theentire crescent sanitary District's Board of Directors (Attachment A), evatuates the operationat andfinanciaI heatth of the crescent Sanitary District (csD). Key chattenges identified inctude frequentpump faitures, aging infrastructure in Gitchrist, teadership gaps, and financiat issues. This reportprovides suggestions to improve operationaI efficiency, address financiat instabitity, and estabtish
stronger governance.

Team of Experts

Upon receiving the request from the Ktamath county Board of commissioners, the fottowingteam ofsssD experts was assembted to conduct the assessment:

Brett Btofsky - District Manager
NickiStrain - Finance Director
Satty Bratton - Treatment Facitity Supervisor
Jason Morrow - Cottections Systems Supervisor
Jon Lee - Lead Treatment Operator
Alex Grounds - Maintenance Technician & Treatment operator
Lee McGinnis - Cottections Operator
Dan Scatas (Adkins Engineering) _ SSSD Engineer of Record
Joe Spendotini - Chairman, SSSD Board of Directors

Charges

There has been speculation circutating regarding charges (FEES) associated with this assessment.
Each person on the Team votunteered their time and expertise, including Dan scatas and joe
spendotini' we are motivated sotety by the desire to assist the Ktamath county commissioners anda fettow wastewater Treatment District, and the citizens within, that are experiencing extreme,criticat chattenges.

As noted by commissioner DeGroot, a true comprehensive assessment coutd cost wetl over g100
thousand' we did not charge csD, Ktamath county, or any other entity forthe time we dedicated toproviding this assessment.
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With tensions being where they are, I highty recommend the path forward avoids increasing sewer

rates above their current [evels, at least until service levets and pubtic trust and confidence improve

signif icantty.

cutting expenses - we examined the annual budget seeking areas where we coutd recommend

cutting expenses and woutd [ike to recommend csD tryto reduce expenses wherever possibte, white

addressing the def iciencies outlined in this report and improving cu rrent service levets to the citizens.

On Tuesday, November 5,2024, CSD was served with a notice of defautt by the Oregon Department

of Justice, civiI enforcement division. I betieve the fo[towing paragraph provides CSD with the timetine

and direction for moving forward in deating with DOJ, OBDD, and ODEQ:

"On or before December 4, 2024, the District must either: (i) pay the above amounts

(collectively, the "lndebtedness') in full; or (ii) present DEQ and OBDD with a written plan by

whichitproposes to pay off the lndebtedness ln full ("Proposed Repayment Plan" or"Plan").
Any Proposed Repayment Plan must include, at a minimum, a date certain by which the District
will begin repayingthe lndebtedness and the period over which the lndebtedness will be repaid."

Options to Consider:

Address Debt:

Work with the ODEQ, Business Oregon, and DOJ to explore debt refinancing and/or

Debt Forgiveness Options:
I have had some communications with State Representative, E. Werner Reschke

where I retayed the criticaI situation confronting CSD. He has stated to me that he is very

interested in assisting the citizens within CSD and witl work with CSD teadership in crafting
potentiat options to address the issues they are confronting. I have provided Rep Reschke's

contact information to CSD teadership so they may begin communicating. I highty

recommend CSD engage Representative Resch ke i m med iatety.

Operationat Chattenges

The SSSD Engineer's observations are summarized below, his futt report is inctuded as Attachment

D, which inctudes photographs of the issues detaited betow.

Gitchrist System:

A smatt part of the Gitchrest cottection system was viewed, but CSD staff stated the fottowing was

indicative of the entire system.

o Manhotes were not industry standard and consisted of concrete vatve boxes with steet tids

and fibergtass risers. Some bases were cast in ptace and the pipe was not comptetely cut out

which can cause maintenance issues. There was evidence of a sanitary sewer overftow. The

CSD staff informed us that these were common across the system.
o CSD staff informed us that manhotes were not spaced to industry standard 400-500 feet

apart.
e Gitchrest tift station-Michigan Avenue - Top of tift station is at grade; this causes issues with

inftow and debris that can enter the tift station inctuding aggregate. Detait on ptans catts for
Page 419
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6-inches of ctearanoe above grade. Junction box inside of wet wett may or may not beexplosion proof, recommend fottow up with etectrician or etectricat engineerto confirm.
Gitchrest Lift station-HwY 97 and Mississippi Drive - Top of tift station is at grade, causingissueswith inftowand debris enteringthe lift station, inotudingaggregate. Detait on ptans cattfor 6-inches of ctearance above grade. Junction box inside of wet wett may or may not beexptosion proof, recommend fottow up with etectrician or etectricat engineer to confirm.There was evidence of aggregate buitdup under the tid of the tift station. Vatve vautt ondischarge of lift station: Drain-back was capped, shor,rtd be free to drain back to wet wett.Drain-back was atso'etevated and shoutd be at bottom of vautt as to not promote standingwater in vautt, which ban cause corrosion of pipe stands. vatve vautt piping had a pVC pipespoot, att pipe within the vautt shoutd match and be ductite iron.
Gitchrest Lift station-HwY 97 and Mountain view Drive - Top of tift station is betow grade; thiscauses issues with inftow and debris that can enterthe tift station inctuJin;;;;;;;;;. Detaiton ptans catts for 6-inches of ctearance above grade. Junction box inside of wetwett may ormay not be explosion proof; recommend fottow up with etectrician or etectricat engineer toconfirm' There was evidence of aggregate buitdup on top of the wet wett tid. Vatve vautt ondischarge of tift station: The drain-back was instatted etevated and shoutd be at bottom ofvautt asto not promote standingwaterin vautt and cause corrosion of pipe stands. There wasstandingwater in the vautt and the ductite iron fittings were exhibiting corroslon. Vatve vauttpiping had a PVC pipe spoot; att pipe within the vautt shoutd match and be ductite iron.Adjacent to the wet wett was what appeared to be a smatt grinder pump station, the top ofthe riser was terminated significantly betow grade, and ]t was apparent that roadsideaggregate was enteringthe pump station as wetl as inftow.

The outdated infrastructure in Gitchrist, inctuding manhotes and main lines, is prone tofaiture and root intrusion.

Crescent Cottection System :

o crescent Lift station-Hitt street and Main street - Top of tift station is at grade which causesissues with inftow and debris that can enter the tift station inctuding ,ggr"grt". Detait onplans catls for 6-inches of ctearance above grade. The etectricat junction box is tocatedoutside of the wet wetu the conduits through the wet welt are not seated and the conduitfromthe iunction box to the etectricat panet did not appear to be seated. This coutd potentiatty
altow explosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and contro[ panet. Additionatty,the etectricat connections in the vautt do not appear to be industry standard exptosion proofor waterproof' Recommend fottow up with etectrician or erectricat engineer to confirmelectricat issues' A piece of pipe was supporting the discharge piping within the dischargevatve vautt' Appropriate pipe supports shoutd be instatted to retieve strain on dischargepipes' lt appears batt checkvatves are instatted which are not attowed in tift stations.o crescent Lift station-shett station - Top of tift station is at grade; this causes issues withinftow and debris that ean enter the tift station inctuding aggregate. Detait on ptans catts for6-inches of ctearance above grade. The etectricat junction box is tocated outside of the wetwet[, the top of the junction box is atso tocated betow grade. The conduits through the wet
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wetl are not seated and the conduit from the junction box to the etectrical panel was seated

with foam seatant, which may not be an approved method as this could potentiatty attow

exptosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and contro[ panet. Additionatty, the
etectrical connections in the vautt do not appear to be industry standard for exptosion proof

or waterproof. Recommend fottow up with electrician or etectricat engineer to confirm
etectricat issues. There appeared to be a leak between the manhote barret sections. There

appears to be batt checkvatves instatted which are not attowed in tift stations. lsotation vatves

and checkvatves must be instatted outside of tift stations. Checkvalves must be instatted

horizontatty.

Crescent Lift station-CrescentWater District - Top of tift station is at grade; this causes issues

with inftow and debris that can enter the tift station inctuding aggregate. Detait on plans catts

for 6-inches of ctearance above grade. The etectrica[ junction box is [ocated outside of the
wet wett, the top of the junction box is atso tocated betow grade. The conduits through the
wet wetl are not sealed and the conduit from the junction box to the etectrical panet was

sealed with foam seatant which may not be an approved method as this coutd potentiatty

atlow exptosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and control panet. Additionatty,
the electrica[ connections in the vautt do not appear to be industry standard for exptosion
proof or waterproof. Recommend fottow up with electrician or etectricaI engineer to confirm
etectricaI issues. There appears to be batt checkvatves instatted which are not attowed in lift
stations.

Crescent Lift station-RV Park on HWY 97 - Top of tift station is at grade; this causes issues
with inftow bnd debris that can enter the tift station inctuding aggregate. Detait on ptans catts

for 6-inches of ctearance above grade. The etectrical junction box is tocated outside of the
wet welt. The top of the junction box is atso tocated below grade. The conduits through the
wet wetl are not seated and the conduit from the junction box to the electrical panel was
seated with foam seatant which may not be an approved method. This coutd potentiatty attow
exptosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and control panet. Additionatty, the
etectrical connections in the vautt do not appear to be industry standard for exptosion proof

or waterproof. Recommend fottow up with electrician or etectricat engineer to confirm
etectrical issues. Vatve vautt piping had two PVC pipe spoots which were misatigned; att pipe

within the vautt shoutd match and be ductite iron.

Crescent Lift station-Pinney's Acres Road and HWY 97 - Top of tift station is at grade; this
causes issues with inftow and debris that can enterthe tift station inctuding aggregate. Detait
on ptans catts for 6-inches of ctearance above grade. The etectricat junction box is located

outside of the wet wett. The top of the junction box is atso located betow grade. The conduits
through the wet wetl are not seated and the conduit from the junction box to the etectricat
pane[ was seated with foam sealant which may not be an approved method which coutd
potentiatty attow exptosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and controt panet.

Additionatty, the etectricat connections in the vautt do not appear to be industry standard for
exptosion proof or waterproof. Recommend fottow up with etectrician or etectricat engineer
to confirm etectrical issues. There appears to be batt check valves instatted which are not
atlowed in tift stations. lsotation vatves and check valves must be instatted outside of the tift
station. Checkvatves must be instatted horizontatty. The brackets at the top of the guideraits

exhibited corrosion. Att materiats within wet wet[ are required to be corrosion proof.
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' Pump Faitures: The crescent cottection and treatment systems have experienced muttiptepump faitures, impacting service retiabitity. These faitures began tess than a year after thesystem went into service, accordingto CSD staff.

Both crescent and Gitchrist coltection systems lack preventive and routine maintenance programs,teading to crises resutting in frequent service disruptions that can occur without notice at any timeof the day or night.

Treatment ptant

o The ductile iron discharge pipes in the pump wet wett exhibited extensive corrosion. lt isunctear if the chtorine dosage is too high and off gassing in the wet wett causing corrosion.o Proper safety equipment was not present in and around the treatment and storage ponds.
Recommendations

Governance and Leadership

' Hire a District Manager: Though currentty cost-prohibitive, planning for a District Manager
hire is essentiar. to provide teadership and support to office staff.o Fitt att 5 board positions.

FinanciaI Management

r cancel and Discontinue use of Debit cards: Reptace att debit cards with credit cards toimprove f inanciaI controt.
o Devetop cost cutting measures that ensure csD can maintain service levets to the citizens.o switch to Fund Accounting: Transition from QuickBooks to secure, audit-friendty fundaccounting software recommended for tocat governments.
o Local Government lnvestment Poot (LGIP): Move reserve funds into the LGlp, currenttyoffering5'00% interest. System Devetopment charges (sDCs) shoutd be ptaced in a separate

LGIP account.
r Through negotiations with oBDD, oDEQ, and now oDoJ, seek a modification and forgiveness

of aLt or portion of the current detinquent loans.o Engage state Representative E. werner Reschke in seeking his expertise and advice forpotentiaI assistance from the state.

OperationaI lmprovements

ln addition to addressing the fottowing operationat specifics, csD needs a secure facitity to housemuch needed spare parts inventory, expensive toots, vehictes, and equipment. The harsh weatherconditions during winter months take a tott on the service vehicte and vacuum truck owned by thedistrict. This woutd atso protect against vandatism and theft.
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CSD is atso in need of retiabte access to a backhoe for maintenance and snow removat. The

treatment ptant is enctosed by a chain tink fence with access through a chain tink swinging gate. With
heavy snowfa[ts, equipment is needed to ctear snow away from the gate to gain access to the
chtorine buitding and treatment ponds.

Gitc hrist Cottection System :

. lnstattnew manhotes and replace deteriorating main tines.
o Devetop a preventive maintenance program with regutar cteaning and televising.
o Reptace faiting pumps and create a maintenance ptan.

o Discontinue use of time to kitt roots in co[tection system. This causes ftoatabte sotids to
sotidify, sink, and coutd btock ftow. Coutd cause issues with the [agoon system as wett.

Utitize proper root cutter(s) for cottection pipe sizes to ctear pipes.

o Routine co[tection system ftushing and cteaning i.e., monthty or weekty for troubted areas to
remove sand and silt.

o Devetop long range ptan for the design, construction, and funding of a modern cottections
system to replace the outdated system in ptace since the 1930's.

o Reptace aged/deteriorated Terracotta mains.
o Route maintines in pubtic rights-of-way.

o lnsta[[ othertypes of pumps ratherthan grinder pumps;essentiatto preventingfaitures.

o Devetop a maintenance ptan for pump stations and pumps.
. Acquire books and/or maintenance manuals for al[ pumps.

o SeaI kits are essentiaI inventory items to keep on hand for pumps, impetters, and grinder
pumps.

o Pumps shoutd be inspected annuatlyforwear.
. Acquire necessary toots to perform basic day-to-day maintenance.
o TraininE f or basic pump repair to assist Operators.

Crescent Cottection System:

o Resotve wiring issues and connect tift station generators to the SCADA system.
. Address the issues created by tift stations that have been instatted at or betow grade.

. lnstat[ othertypes of pumps ratherthan grinder pumps;essentialto preventingfaitures.
e Devetop a maintenance ptan for pump stations and pumps.

. Acquire books and/or maintenance manuats for at[ pumps.
o SeaI kits are essential inventory items to keep on hand for pumps, impetters, and grinder

pumps.
o Pumps shoutd be inspected annuatty for wear.
. Acquire necessary tools to perform basic day-to-day maintenance.
o TraininB f or basic pump repair to assist Operators.

Treatment Ptant:

. Re-estabtish Ftoat Atarms: Remove zip-ties f rom ftoats and reset atarms.
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' lnstat[ Air Diffuser: Add an air diff user to improve water movement and reduce corrosion.o safety ropes shoutd be instatted around tined sewer ponds to attow peopte to exit the ponds
if they fatt in.

o Devetop overftow poticies and procedures. A copy may be required to be sent to DEe.o some type of screening needed at the wastewater treatment facitity to remove gravet, sitt,
and sand to prevent debris buitdup in tagoons.

' Better monitoring and proper dosing of chtorine coutd reduce or Etiminate corrosion to seals,pipes, and concrete.

Conctusion

The crescent sanitary District faces serious operationaI and financiat chattenges, particularty in theGitchrist and crescent cottection systems and treatment ptant. lmmediate action on therecommendations in this report coutd hetp restore operationaI stabitity, enhance financiatsustainabitity, improve service detivery, and begin rebuitding trust and confidence within theCrescent and Gitchrist community.

By cottaborating with state and [oca[ agencies and fottowing these recommendations, csD canstrengthen its operations, improve retations with citizens, and tuitd a stabte financiatfuture.
lf you have any questions or require further detaits, ptease do not hesitate to contact me by email orphone.

Respectfutty,

Joe Spendotini and the SSSD Team
Joe@sssd.org
(541) 892-5460

Attachments:

r Attachment A: Commissioners Request

o Attachment B: Crescent Sanitary District Boundary Map

. Attachment C: CSD Board Appointments

r Attachment D: Engineer,s Observations Report

o AttachmentE:2024 _ 2O25Operationat Budget

. Attachment F: Accountants'Assessment and concerns

o Attachment G: OBDD and DEe Debt Obtigations Summary

o Attachment H oDoJ civit Enforcement Division Demand Letter
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Attachrnent r A
Board of Commissioners

David Henslee, Commissioner Kelley Minty, Commissioner Derrlck DeGroot, Commissioner

Position One Position Two Position Three

June 25,2024

Joe Spendolini,
Board Chair

South Suburban Sanitary District
2201 Laverne Ave.

Klamath Falls, OR 97603

Re: Evaluation of Crescent Sanitary District

Dear Mr. Spendolini,

We would like to request that South Suburban Sanitary District do a complete evaluation of Crescent

Sanitary District to include an assessment of their financials and infrastructure,

Sincerely,

*-
David A. Henslee
Chair

Derrick DeGroot

Commissioner

When you're here, you're home

305 Main Street, Klamath Falls, Oregon 97601

Phone: (541)883-5100 | Fax: (541)883-5163 | Emailr bocc@klamathcounty.org
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BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
KLAMATH COUNTY, OREGON

tN THE MATTER OF APPOTNTING KEVIN )
LARSON, THOMAS FULLER, JAMES SIMMONS )

AND EARNEST MORREIRA TO THE CRESCENT )

SANTTARY DTSTRTCT BOARD )

oRDER NO. 2025-010

THIS MATTER coming on at this time to be heard before the Klamath County
Board of Commissioners and it appearing that al! board members of the CRESCENT
SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD have resigned; and

lT FURTHER APPEARING that Kevin Larson, Thomas Fuller, James Simmons
and Earnest Morreira have applied, are willing, able and eligible to fill said vacancies;

NOW, THEREFORE, lT lS HEREBY ORDERED that Kevin Larson, Thomas
Fuller, James Simmons and Earnest Morreira are appointed to fill the vacancies on the
Crescent Sanitary District Board commencing this day. All appointed Board members
are subject election at the next election cycle.

Kevin Larson - Position 1

Thomas Fuller - Position 2
James Simmons - Position 3
Earnest Morreira - Position 4

DONE AND DATED this 31st day of July, 2024.

KLAMATH COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Not Present

Commissioner
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July L7,2024

South Suburban Sanitary District
Brett Blofsky
District Manager
2201 Laverne Avenue
Klamath Falls, Oregon 976OL

RE: Crescent Sanltary District
Site Tour and Review - Report of Findings

Dear Mr. Blofsky,

lntroduction
The crecent Sanitary District (CSD) recently constructed a new collections and treatment system.
Additionally, csD provided a system connection to the Gilchrist sewer collection system. csD has been
experiencing a number of issues with the sanitary system that would seem unusuitfo* brand-new
system' The south suburban sanitary District was requested by the Klamath County commissioners to
conduct a site visit and review of the coltections and treatmeni systern of the cSD. Adkins was included
in this request to provide an engineering review.

Findines

There were a number of pumps in the lift stations that failed, it is unclear as to the method of failure. lt
also seems that the pumps were originally installed as single-phase pumps and the CSD is now using
three-phase pumps which would require a vFD to compleie tire phase conversion. lt seems the largestpump station generator does not have the capacity to start the pumps at the current voltage, therefore
the csD is installing vFDs in order to ramp up the power requirement and avoid a locked rotor ampcondition' The following table identifies deficiencies in the system based on the visual sjte visit
performed on Jul 3rd, 2024. No testing or operation of the system was performed during this site visit. lt
is unclear as to whether the deficiencies were approved during construction or not. There may be other
deficiencies not included in this list.

Gilchrest
collection system

A small part of the Gilchrest collection system was rieweditre maffi
were not industry standard manholes and consisted of concrete valve
boxes with steel lids and fiberglass risers (picture 1). some bases of the
manholes were cast in place and the pipe was not completely cut out
which can cause maintenance issues (picture 2). There were evidence of a
sanitary sewer overflow. The csD staff informed us that these were
common across the system. csD staff also informed us that manholes

Gilchrest lift
station-Michigan

Avenue

Top of lift station is at gra
that can enter the lift station including aggregate (picture 3). Detail on
plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. Junction box inside of

1435 Esplanade Ave, Klamath Fatts, OR 97601

o541.884.4666, f 54{.884.5935 / wAdkinsEngineering.com
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Attachment D

wet well may or may not be explosion proof (Picture 4), recommend

follow up with electrician or electrical engineer to confirm.

3 Gilchrest Lift
station-HWY 97

and Mississippi
Drive

Top of lift station is at grade, this causes issues with inflow and debris

that can enter the lift station including aggregate (Picture 5), Detail on

plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. Junction box inside of
wet well may or may not be explosion proof, recommend follow up with

electrician or electrical engineer to confirm. There was evidence of
aggregate buildup under the lid of the lift station (Picture 6). Valve vault

on discharge of lift station: drain-back was capped (Picture 7), should be

free to drain back to wet well, the drain-back was also elevated and

should be at bottom of vault as to not promote standing water in vault

and cause corrosion of pipe stands. Valve vault piping had a PVC pipe

spool (Picture 8), all pipe within the vault should match and be ductile
iron.

4 Gilchrest Lift
station-HWY 97

and Mountain
View Drive

Top of lift station is below grade (picture 9), this causes issues with inflow

and debris that can enter the lift station including aggregate. Detail on

plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. Junction box inside of
wet well may or may not be explosion proof (Picture 10), recommend

follow up with electrician or electrical engineer to confirm. There was

evidence of aggregate buildup on top of the wet well lid (Picture 9). Valve

vault on discharge of lift station: the drain-back was installed elevated
(Picture 11) and should be at bottom of vault as to not promote standing

water in vault and cause corrosion of pipe stands' There was standing

water in the vault and the ductile iron fittings were exhibiting corrosion.

Valve vault piping had a PVC pipe spool (Picture t?l, all pipe within the

vault should match and be ductile iron. Adjacent to the wet well was

what appeared to be a small grinder pump station, the top of the riser

was terminated significantly below grade, and it was apparent that
roadside aggregate.was entering the pump station as well as inflow
(Picture 13).

5 Crescent Lift
station-Hill Street
and Main Street

Top of lift station is at grade (Picture 14), this causes issues with inflow

and debris that can enter the lift station including aggregate. Detail on

plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. The electricaljunction
box is located outside of the wet well, the conduits through the wet well
are not sealed and the conduit from the junction box to the electrical
panel did not appear to be sealed (Picture 15)this could potentially allow

explosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and control panel.

Additionally, the electrical connections in the vault do not appear to be

industry standard for explosion proof or waterproof (Picture 15),

recommend follow up with electrician or electrical engineer to confirm

electrical issues. A piece of pipe was supporting the discharge piping

within the discharge valve vault (Picture L6), appropriate pipe supports

should be installed to relieve strain on discharge pipes. lt appears ball

check valves are installed which are not allowed in lift.stations (Picture

16).

,4Lt^Hlf ,lNF:#.""1"-"'ff l,:,ll"';'i.l:iliJ#Ji"'Engineerinscom
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Crescent Lift
station-Shell

Station plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. the elJctricaljunction
box is located outside of the wet welt, the top of the junction box is arso
located below grade (picture 1g), the conduits through the wet weil are
not sealed and the conduit from the junction box to ihe electrical panel
was sealed with foam sealant (pictur.e 1g)which may not be an approved
method, this could potentially allow explosive or corrosive gases to enter
the junction box and control panel. Additionally, the electrical
connections in the vault do not appear to be industry standard for
explosion proof or waterproof (picture 1g), recommend follow up with
electrician or electrical engineer to confirm electricat issues. Theie
appeared to be a leak between the manhole barrelsection (picture L9).
There appears to be ball check valves installed which are not alrowed in

Top of lift station is at grade (picture
and debris that can enter the lift station including aggregate. Detait on

lift stations. lsolation valves and check valves must be installed outside of
lift station (Picture 20). check valves must be installed horizontallv.

Crescent Lift
station-Crescent
Water District plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above graoe. rne electricaljunction

box is located outside of the wet well, the top of the junction box is also
located below grade, the conduits through the wet well are not seared
and the conduit from the junction box to the electrical panel was sealed
with foam sealant which may not be an approved method, this courd
potentially allow explosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box
and control panel, Additionally, the electrical connections in the vault do
not appear to be industry standard for exprosion proof or waterproof,
recommend follow up with electrician or electrical engineer to confirm
electrical issues. There appears to be ball check valves installed which are
not allowed in lift stations

Top of lift station is at grade (picture zrL this causes issues with inflow
and debris that can enter the lift station including aggregate. Detail on

Crescent Lift
station-RV Park on

HWY 97

Top of lift station is at grade (picture
and debris that can enter the lift station incruding aggregate. Detail on
plans calls for 6-inches of clearance above grade. The electricaljunction
box is located outside of the wet well, the top of the junction box is also
located below grade, the conduits through the wet well are not sealed
and the conduit from the junction box to the etectrical panel was sealed
with foam sealant which may not be an approved meilrod, this could
potentially allow explosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box
and control panel. Additionally, the electricalconnections in the vault do
not appear to be industry standard for exprosion proof or waterproof,
recommend follow up with electrician or electricat engineer to confirm
electrical issues. Valve vault piping had two pvc pipe spools which were
misaligned (Picture 24), all pipe within the vault shoutd match and be
ductile iron.

Crescent Lift
station-Pinney's
Acres Road and

HWY 97

Top of lift station is at grade, ttris caui
that can enter the lift station including aggregate. Detail on plans calls for
6-inches of clearance above grade. The electricaljunction box is located

i also located below
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grade, the conduits through the wet well are not sealed and the conduit
from the junction box to the electrical panel was sealed with foam

sealant which may not be an approved method, this could potentially

allow explosive or corrosive gases to enter the junction box and control
panel. Additionally, the electrical connections in the vault do not appear

to be industry standard for explosion proof or waterproof, recommend

follow up with electrician or electrical engineer to confirm electrical

issues. There appears to be ball check valves installed which are not

allowed in lift stations (Picture 25). lsolation valves and check valves must

be installed outside of lift station. Check valves must be installed

horizontally. The brackets at the top of the guiderails exhibited corrosion,

all materials within wet well are required to be corrosion proof(Picture

2s).

70 Treatment and
Storage Ponds

Safety ropes should be installed around lined sewer ponds to allow
people to exit the ponds if they fall in. The ductile iron discharge pipes in

the pump wet well exhibited extensive corrosion (Picture 26). lt is unsure

if the chlorine dosage is too high and off gassing in the wet well causing

corrosion.

Conclusion a nd Recom mendations

Based on my visual inspection and review of the documents provided, the items in the table included

herein should be remedied or at minimum a follow up inspection should be informed. This report was

not an in-depth engineering review, nor was any construction documentation reviewed. Additionally,

this review was based only on those items viewed, justification for non-compliance items included

herein may exist, and it should be encourage to receive such documentation, if it exists.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions, comments, or concerns you may have about the

content of this report.

Sincerely,

VJ >rL
DanielScalas, P.E. & C,W.R.E.

Pri nci pol/P roject M o no ger

o 541.884.4666 | f 541..884.5335 / wAdkinsEngineering.com

1435 Esplanade Ave, Klamath Falls, OR 97601
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August 22,2024

Crescent Sa nitary District
136745 Hwy 97
Crescent, OR 97733

Dear Ms. Ashcraft,

ln accordance with your instructions, and in tine with the requirements of the oregon Departmentof Environmentat Quatity (DEQ) I have compited the FinanciatAnatysis Summary of crescentsanitary District (csD) set out on the fottowing pages and which is beingforwarded to you togetherwith this letter.

The purpose of the financiat anal.ysis under the generatly accepted accounting principtes (GAAp) isto determine csD's feasibitity of its continuity of a "going concern" entity. The data was derived
f rom various sources and att data presented is excludrnl amounts for amortization, depreciation,
and [oan interest for the purpose of determining csD ,otr"n"y or is based on my own computations
as fottows:

City of Crescent demographics

csD Accumutation of cash. Historicatfinancial data forthe three years ended June 30,2022,to June 30, 2024, and the month ended Juty 31 ,2024.

Cash deptetion forecastFy 2A2g

CSD Juty 2024 profitand Loss Budget vs. Actuat

Operationat Budgets Fy 2o2s

Crescent Community Demographics

Every business growth strategy must have a ptan to expand in a specific aspect, theirpotentiat for a significant growth in their yearty revenue, number of potential customers, etc.

crescent is an unincorporated community in Ktamath county (no to be confused with crescentLake CcD or Crescent City) as reported bythe United States Census Bureau, duringtheir 2020decenniaI census, crescent city inctudingthe community of crescent have a totat poputation ofapproximatety 3,300 with a median househotd income of $56,900, and their median age of 55.S. lt,sestimated that crescent (the community) has currentty a totat estimated poputation of 4oo-500.
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At the writing of this report, CSD is servicing 323 ctients. with no significant growth potentiat due to
timited customer avaitabitity and sewer facitity [imitations. Management being aware of its
[imitations, during 2020-2023 offered a significantty reduced cost to tot owners of a $t,500 fee to
connect to CSD Stub. Current estimated cost to connect to CSD Stub is $9K. lt shoutd be noted
that CSD sewer facitity service is timited to the east side of Crescent (the community), further
reducing the potentiat for growth.

GSD Accumulation of Cash

Exhibit 1 and 2 disptays operating historicat data of CSD for the periods of their FY 2022,
2023, and 2024. During CSD's FY 2023 and 2O22grants totated $8SS,OOO and $103,934 and loan

forgiveness $500,000 and $1 2,000 respectively.

These grants and toan proceeds received during FY 2023 and2022 enabted CSD to keep

45.10/o and 100.00/o respectivety of their net cash provided by its operation, marking the beginning of
CSD accumutation of cash from $39,540 on 30 lune2O22to a cash batance of $144,671on 31 Juty

2024.
As everyone is aware, no loan payments, interest or loan fees have been paid due during FY

2024. DuringFY 2023 management began to foresee a projected and significant cash deptetion
which began in Aprit ot 2024 (exhibit 3 and 4).

FiscaI Year 2022 2023 2024 lulv 2O24

Gross OperationaI lncome $277,458 $315,696 $368,1 03 ($4,872)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 11,839 38,163 54,607 ($17,234\

Cash at end of period-Att accts $39,540 $sz,got $161,904 $144,671

Cash deptetion forecast FY 2023

During the month of June 2023 management requested a simpte cash ftow projection to determine
the feasibitity of CSD having sufficient cash to pay loans due in December 2023 andFebruary 2024.

An excet worksheet (Exhibit 5) was prepared showing estimated cash balance per month f rom

Jul.y 2023Ju ne 2024 by catcutating estimated net cash increases per month (no depreciation, loan

interest considered) and apptying amount of scheduled loan payments in December 2023 and

February 2024.

As shown in Exhibit 5, using actuaI cash balances and assuming att payments scheduted during FY

2023 woutd have been made, CSD woutd have ended their FY 2023 with a positive cash batance in

att financiat institutions in the amount of $67,389, not sufficient to meet FY 2024 operationaI cost.

On January 9,2024, an independent audit report compteted by Sensiba Accounting Firm provided

in their note 11 - Going concern (page t I of their report - Exhibit 6) the opinion that it was untikety

that the district woutd have the abitity to meet its obtigations during FY 2024 and into f uture fiscal
years.

3
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CSD Juty 2024 profit and Loss Budget vs. Actuat

Based on financiat results for the month of July 2024, exhibit 7 presents a proflt and toss budget vs.actual statement' For the period presented att bank accounts were reconcited and accrualsrecorded to fairty present an accurate income and expenditure statement to compare tomanagement,s Fy 2025 projections.

As presented in exhibit 7, operationat and administrative costs exceeded operationaI income by$4'gzz' Management had proiected a toss tor )uly 2o24in the amount of $6,749. Managementindicated that a projected major repair of one of theirtrucks estimated to cost between g3-4thousand dottars is an on-going project duringthe current month of August.

Operationat Budgets Fy 2O2i

As a resutt of management's actions to actuatize csD with a transparent governance byimplementing district poticies with designed standard and adopting requiied ordinances, began toreach out to various stakehotders.

Their quest began after reatizing mid-year 2023 their unavoidabte deptetion of cash over tho next12-24 months and the inabitity to meet toan payments deadtines, csD office manager advised whatwas then CSD,s management and the advisory board.

Assistance for guidance began with DEQ web meetings, csD tegat staff, osHA, AND HR sDAo, withfinatty word getting out to the Ktamath county commissioner. As a resutt, a visit by managementpersonnet of the south suburban sanitary District (sssD) was scheduteo ouring ju ly 2o24and withadditionatvisits duringthe current monffr of August.

99D wa: visited by sssD's accountant and engineers, providing significant and vatuabteinformation of csD's deteriorating condition of the sewer systeil because of what appeared to be afautty design' sssD is in the process of pubtishing their finiingr to the Ktamath countycommissioner.

with information and guidance received by SDAo, osHA and consulting services provided by scottDe carto' a budget was prepared for csD's.FY 2025 reflecting increases in operationat expensesand personnel tabor costs as noted by osHA during their rec-ent visit. The consuttantb review ofthe sewer system required significantincreases in repairs and maintenance costs.

Exhibit 8 detineates csD's FY 2025 management's detaited administrative and operationat budgetportraying an annua[ [oss at year enO June gO ,2O2S,in the amount of g99,6gg. As noteO in myprevious section csD tuly202tt Profit and Loss vsActual, management,s projected loss forthemonth of )uly 2024was on target with actuat resutts.
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Summary

With the assumption management's FY 2025 budget as presented is considered fairty accurate, the

fottowing conctusion is provided:

Utitity fee increase

Currentty CSD utitity monthty fee for their residentiat customers is $79.50 ($198 for the 3-4

existing business ctients). A monthty fee increases of approximatety $20 for each of their
423 customers woutd have to be imptemented to reach CSD's break in point.

DEQ/OBDD Loan term comPliance

OBDD LOANS

DUE DATE AMOUNT
DEC2024 $57,798

DEQ LOAN # R251OO

AUG2024 74,140
AUG2024 28,252
AUG 2024 16,962
FEB 2025 74,140

DEQ LOAN #R251O2
AUG 2024 15,22O
FEB2025 4,362

Total Cash Requirement $27O,874

Based on CSD's timited to non-existing potentiat for growth coupted with the untiketihood of

a significant increase in utitity service fees of approximatety $55 to comptywith toan terms

in addition to the increase of $20 to reach CSD's breakeven point amountingto a totat
monthty residentiat fee of $154 (currentty at $79.50) it's my opinion and management's due

ditigencesincethebeginningof theirFY202Sbyreachingout forguidance,thatCSDis
quickty reaching the insotvency period.

Assuming CSD manages to obtain State, federat grants or [oan forgiveness covering their

entire toan portfotio, CSD's going conceln witt continue to be untikety for now and future
years.

CSD witt stil,t have to be content with the tiketihood of fee increases to meet operational
expenses, the acquisition of additionaI cash for future maintenance, and equipment
reptacement with an existing and deficient sewer system.

EXHIBIT C



It is recommended csD management request a moratorium on their toan paynents toreview and consider recommendations that are expected from the sssD,s report to KtamathCounty Commissioner.

ln addition, and to rid CSD of questionabte administrative and operationat cost aspresented in their Fy 2025 budget by others, an in-depth study be conducted to vatidate by
a third-and independent-party management's current ?l2o2sbudget. perhaps professionat
engineers that visited csD facitities have atready provided that information to sssD,s
management.

Dba BizTaxes1120
403 S Paseo Pena Unit B
Green Vattey, AZ 85614
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C D E F G H

2 CSD FY 2025 Service lncome Proiection

Total

3

4 lesidentiat 304 79.50 24,168.00

5 l'ier 1 15 79.50 1,192.50 (30.00) Water

6 lier 2 7 198.50 1,389.50 (1e8.50) Watker Range

7 l'ier 3 7 409.50 409.50

8 Fire Station t 79.50 79.50

9 Fire Station Housing 7 99.45 99.45

10 SchooI 7 468.00 468.00

11 Church 3 79.50 238.50

12 Motets and Hotets 1 7 330.52 330.52

13 Motets and Hotets 2 t 203.58 203.58

14 Motets and Hotets 3 149.77 149.77

15 RV Parks g5g.5a+0.585/day 2 7,772.55 1,506.67 85.00/o Jun-Oct Season

16 RV Pa rks $Sg.SO+0.S85/day 1,772.55 620.39 35.00/o Qct-May Season

17

18 Proiected TotaI Monthly lncome 337 30,855.28

19
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Crescent Sanitary Dietrict - Actual
Balance Sheet

As of December 31,ZAZ4

Dec 31, 24
ASSETS

Cununt Ascete
ChecklngtSavlngs

1000 . CSD Checktng
i0l0 . CSD Savlngs-bEe Loane
1020 . CSD Buslnees gavlngs

Total Checktng/gavings

Accounb Recelvable
1208 , property Tax Recelvable
1212 , Cuatomer Sanltary Setvlces
12t3 . Tax Asseesor Delinquent Acets

Totel AccountB Recelvabte

Other Csmnt AssetB
1220 . Deposlts
1300 . prcpal{ Expanseo

Total Oth.r CufiEnt A$etB

Total CurrntAss€ts

Fixod Assets
l5l0 . Land . WastewatBr Faclfity
1516. Easement
1520 .Maohlnery & Equtpment
ls35 . Machlnery & Equli - Vehlctes,tEE0 . Sewer Goilec0o-n iystem
t55l . Grindert
l59O . profecb ln progrcBs

1G90.3. cl.g-3 tns. Clalm

Total 1890. profec& ln progruss

lg20 .Accum Dep Machinery & Equlp
l9E0 . Accum. DLp - Building-' -a-'F

Total Flxed Assets

otherAssets

!!!! . toase lsset - Bufldtns
1980 . Accum -Amortzatlon-

Total OtherAEseE

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Llablltfiee

Gunent LlablllUes"
Accounte payable

2010 . Accounts payable

Toial Accounte payable

Oth6r Cun'ent Llablll0es
l9?9 ' E.P!oY"b vacaton Payabte
191 

. 
Ego,o*"'s Stck Abeence i"y"rr"

2025 . .Dlrcct Deposlt Llabllltlss

-2919 
.:layro[ Taxee payabte

2035. Unearned Utillty Income
2040 . Accrued lntereit
20'fi . Debrrcd property Taxes
20'tE. Gonttacts payadb
2060 . ShortTem Lease payable
2158 . ODBB ShortTerm Loan payabte
2710 . DEe Short Term t oan rayiOte 

-

75,7%.77
53,284.35
9,027.07

138,049.19

1,233.00
38,084,58

1,140.71

41,039.29

600.00
4,2U.03

4,884.03

183,970.51

90,070.00
36,412.V9
29,805.20
95,555.72

11,460,9,t9.22
65,633.00

25,677.OO

25,677.00

-50,494.00
-1,052,350.00

10,706,228.93

94,545.30
-28,728.48

65,816.84

10,959,016.29

200.00

200.00

405.22
534.98

3,262.59
1,312.32
2,814.00

68,277.12
1,035.00
2,300.00

10,163.94
46,275.57
62,304.00

ESCHIBIT F
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Grescent Sanitary District - Actual
Balance Sheet

As of December 31,2024

Dec 3'1, 24

Total Other Gurmnt Llablllties

Total Curr€nt Llabllltles

Long Torm LiablllUee
2280 . Lsase Obllgation - Bullding
2500 .ODBB Loan Payable
2700. DEQ Funds

Total Long Tarm Llabllltles

Total Liabllitles

Equlty
i!3fi1 . Retalned Earnlnge
Net lncome

Total Equlty

TOTAL LIABTLITIES & EQUITY

198,884.63

199,084.63

55,653.00
922,029,21

4,230,986.00

5,208,668.21

5,407,752.84

5,524,798.18
23,465.26

5,548,263.44

10,9s6,016.28

ESCHIBIT F
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Crescent Sanitary District - Actual
Profit & Loss

December 2024

Ordlnary lncome/Enpense
lncome

,fG60 . U$llty Revenue
4665 . Klamath County property Taxee
4910 . Latc Fees

Tolel lncome

Gross Prolit

Expense
510_0- 1lVages & Assoclated payroil Cost

5105 .Wages Expense
Sl0Z. Weges Expense -On Catt
5,108 . Stipend - Medicat
q!10. payroll Employer,s Coot
5ll5 . Severance pay
5120 . Workmans Compensa0on Expenee
5130 .Accrued Vacatlon Expense
5135 . Accrued Slck Absence Expenae
5150 .payro[ Servlces Cost

Totat 5100 . Wagee & Aeeoclated payroll Coot

8200 . Gontract Servlces
6210 .Accountlng Fees
6290.Alam Sysbm
6240 . Audlt Fee
6200. Consulilng
6270.Legal and proft$tonat Fe€a
6280 . Outsldo Contract Servlceg

Total 6200 . ConttactServices

6400 . Faclltfies & Vehlcles
8f20 . Facifttieg Repatr & Malnt
6440 . Vehlcle Gas & Fuel
Bf50 . Vehlcle Ropalrg and Malntenane

Total 8O0 . Faclllfes & Vehtcteg

6500 . Fleld Equtpment Malntenance
0510. Chlorlna0on
6lil5. Communlcatlon
6630 .Ftetd Suppiles
6580 . Testlng

Totel 6800 .Fteld Equlpment lsalntEnance

6800. Uflfi$es
66{0. Electrlc
6620 . CenturyLink
6630 . Crescent Water Expense

Total 6600 . U0lt0es

7000 . Ofice Expense
7120. Adverflstng
7lg0 . Ask ty Accountant
7140. Eank Feo
7150 . Bualnees Expenses
7200 . Garbage Senlca
724O . lneurEnce - property/Caeualtv
7270 . Llcense and Fe6s
7280 . Lloonse, dues and permits
7320 . Offcs Supplies
7330 . Ofilce Equlpment& Softirare
7360 . pioperty Lease
7370 . poshge, lialllng Servlce

211,939.26

71,078.49
8,778.00
2,200.00
8,449.03
1,760.00

732,54
1,390.M
1,073.92

Jul - DEc 24

176,235.M
2E,258.62
7,'[45.00

2't1,939.26

96,004.12

13,769.00
240.00

12,150.00
3,635.00
3,165.00

41,300.00

2,23/,.22
2,218.79

994.05

5,447.06

4,680.93
868.50

1,785.34
886.00

8,220.77

7,010.97
1,055.12

444.63

8,510.72

225.00
2,790.50

30.00
374.70
86.90

5,650.98
300.00

2,110.00
1,846.03
1,179.37
5,500.00
2,457.42
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Crescent Sanitary District - Actual
Profit & Loss

July through December 2024

Jul - Dec 24

7380. Prlntlng and Copylng
7390 . *Reconcillatlon Dlacrcpancles
7400 . Subscrlptlom, llember:hlp Dues
7410. Sofrwarc
7415 . Stlpend - CSD Boad
7420. Tralnlng
7430' Telephone Expence-Verizon
7t140 , Taxes. Not UBIT
7470'Web Deolgn and talntenance

Total 7000 .Offlco ExpeBe

7450 .Travel and Heetlngs

Total Expenso

Net Ordlnary lncome

Other lncomelExpense
Othor lncomo

8000 . Other lncome
8(N0 . Proc€sde from lnsurance claimg
8070 . Interest lncome

Total 8000 . Other lncome

Total Other lncome

Other Expense
9000 . Other Expenses

9120 .Bad Dobtr
9140 . Illsc6llaneous Expenae
0150 . PrlorYear Income/Expense

Total 9000 . Othor Exponsos

Total Other Expense

Net Other lncome

Net lnaomo

760.76
0.99

1,212.76
994.99
729.98
't50.00

't,221.48
46.07

306.00

27,573.93

24.12

187,gEO.72

23,958.54

500.00
236.04

736.04

238.50
139.45
851.37

1,229.32

1,229.32

23,465.26
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Alejandro Gildelatore <gil@biztaxesl 1 20.com>

FW: CSD - Rate Study
3 messages

_B_r:LOlAshcrlft.<info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>
To: Alejandro Gildelatone <Gil@biztaxesl i20.com,

Tue, Oct 22,2024 at E:45 AM

Good moming I
csD is having to move forward with thq rate survey. Dessa wells, wlth RC.AC is coordinating and executing this process.she has requested the following inrorm'ation' 

-i.am-going 
to reseaicli?or where and how I gei an updated asset inventoryreport' lryou have anv suggestlons or information in tnii report,'pG;;" ret meinow. irriiii'ori )

Thank you and make it a great dayt

Brenda Ashcraft
Office Manager

'rfg.@_clglcglt-sllitarydistrict.orgcmairto:info@crescentoanitarydisrriot.org>Cell: 5l$1€54-9109
Office: 541*433-Z9Sl
Hours: Mon-Thurs 9:00am-3:30pm
P.O. Box265 - Crescent, OR 9i733

From: Dessa Wells <dessa.wells@rcac.oro>
Sent Monday, October 21, ZOZ+ EOS ptrf "
To: Brenda Ashcrafi <info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>
Subjecfl RE: CSD - Rate Study

Hello Brenda,

I did talk with rawni and she shared that you were interested in moving fonrvard with having a rate study oonducted.As we shared in our origlnal conversatiotis, we provioe th"r. r.*ir"s-"i no cost to the communities rrrc assist

!-share-d with rawni, that we- have a few questions about crescent,s readiness.Does Crescent have an updated asset in'ventorye inis wilf NcfuG a'dJirpfep ffst of all of the system,s components,eEtimated remainins life, and estimated costs. t'nis i"form;ii;;-i;-ui"-Jil'0"t"*ine ne cosioi'tuture replacement, andthose costs willbe included in the rate prqections.

nffi';H*:lli'#,x.?J? u,TIl!3,1ilJf;H?fl:1,:fr:i::flTf,lffi!fftgffll the svstem be abre to provide 3 vrs

Respectfully,
DESSAIA'ELLS
RCAC lEnvlronmental
RegionalFietd Manager I Oregon
g9:y:yelt gqrcac. orgcmaitto :dessa.weils@rcac.org>
360-55&2150 (ce[)

.19+C is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and Iender
lcid:lmageOO't .png@01 DB2SF4.enreCAC0i -'

From: Brenda Ashcraft <info@crescentsanitarydistrict.orgcmailto:info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>>
sent Monday, october 21, zoz+ e:gt ptl,
To: Dessa weils <dessa.weils@rcac.orgcmairto:dessa.we[s@rcac.org>>
Subiect CSD - Rate Study

Hi Dessa,

EXHIBIT G



Tawni reached out to me this morning regarding the rate study. CSD is ready to go forurard with this project, however, we
are looking for a grant to pay for the entire survey. ls the original grant still available? I would like to set up an
appointment with you at your convenience to discuss what you will need to get the survey started and any other pertinent
information you need to share with me. Thank you for your time.

Thank you and make it a greai day!

Brenda Ashcraft
Office Manager
info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org<mailto:info@crescentsanitarydistrict"org>
Cell: 541-654-9109
Office: 541-433-2951
Hours: Mon-Thurs 9:00am-3:30pm
P.O. Box 265 - Crescent, OR 97733

;ffi mffiffi imaseooi.pns

ru(rr+r ffi I hre(**.lrrr"S.O.r.dtl

Brenda Ashcraft <info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org> Tue, Oct 22,2024 at2:.20 PM

To: Dessa Wells <dessa.wells@rcac.org>
Cc: Alejandro Gildelatorre <Gil@biztaxes1120,com>

Hi Dessa,

Please find the attached reports that you requested, please let me know if the format of the reports will work for your

needs. Please let me know if you have any questions.

For CSD's financial statements formaUpresentation has gone through several changes for the past 3 years in an effort to
meet present CSD and GMP requirements.

Additionally, CSD is currently going through significant increases in expenses being forecasted in the coming months as a
result of newly found operational deficiencies requiring studies by engineering professionals and others resulting in
additional maintenance/upgrading cost due to faulty construction of the exitlng sewer system.

Thank you and make it a great day!

Brenda Ashcraft
Office Manager
info@crescentsanitarydistrict.orgcmailto:info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>
Cell: 541€54-9109
Office: 541-433-2951
Hours: Mon-Thurs 9:00am-3:30pm
P.O. Box 265 - Crescent, OR 97733

From: Dessa Wells <dessa.wells@rcac.org>
Sent: Monday, October 21,2024 8:06 PM
To: Brenda Ashcraft <info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>
Subject: RE: CSD - Rate Study

Hello Brenda,

I did talk with Tawni and she shared that you were interested in moving forward with having a rate study conducted.
As we shared in our original conversations, we provide these services at no cost to the communities we assist.

I shared with Tawni, that we have a few questions about Crescent's readiness.
Does Crescent have an updated asset inventory? This will include a complete list of all of the system's components'

EXHIBIT G



estimated remaining life, and estimated costs. This information is used to determine the cost of future replacement, andthose costs will be ineluded in lhe ,"t" piol"ctions,

Tawni shared that you are working on getting the bookkeeping.organized. would the system be able to provide 3 yrs.worth of financiar actuars? we usE tnis-intoriraiion to creaie irrig"t-pr"jection.

Respectfully,
DESSAWELLS
RCAC I Environmental
Regional Field Manager I Oregon

*:T{e!l g@rcac. org< maitto: dessa.wells@rcac. org>
360-558-2150 (ceil)

,191C is an equatopportunity provider, employel and tender
[cid:imageoo1.png@o1 oBZ +fn' .s4i6+gl}l - -' -

From: BrendaAshcraft
Sent Monday, October 21, 2024 3:31 iM
To: Dessa wiils <dessa.wbusqrcac.oig<mairto:dessa.weils@rcac.org>>
Subject CSD - Rate Study

Hi Des6a,

iffiiffi:ii,il1liltitiiltffi!,ffi:itx'x,1fl:fiLltfi;r;,:;ii;i,iui,,"?#ffii1H11r]r3ffir,however,weappolntment with you at yoir convenlence to o'iiiuss what v6u *t[ niii to get the suryey started and any other pertinentinformation you need to 6hare with me. -nani you for Voui time.

Thank you and make it a great day!

tsrenda Ashcraft
Office Manager

Gell:541-654-9109
Office: 541-433-295,l

!qur!, Mon-Thurs 9:00am-3:30pm
P.O. Box 265 - Crescent, OR g7733

3 attachmsnts

f$lf trtrffi#" imageOOl.png
7Kx*lLt rfi.5.dffmq*rb&qa..rn

B ?33fl_r"cuments_Fixed 
Asseb_Listing pDF(cREscENT sANtTARy DrST)), ).pdf

E fll^* 2024 2023 2o22.pdt

les-sa Wells <dessa.wefls@rcac.org>
To: Brenda Ashcraft <info@Eescentianitarydistrict.org>
Cc: Aleja ndro Gitdetatorre-< G it@ b izi;;;;i2;. ;;r,

Hello Brenda,

Ilr:[mH;::[i3i:?i"':,iff",1,:#-iJH:g:i:"i3,ffi,,iuff:i,*1x::1!]lffil%lHi":ffi,[%

Wed, Oct 30,2024 at 6:0g pM
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each component and what it wil! cost to replace them, I also noticed that there is a mixture of CSD and
Gilchrist assets. Would the rate study be for both systems? Are they billed differently?

For the financials, the P&L is great, and we will use that, bu1

comparison report. A P&L does not show allthe information
the actuals, a budget

Respectfully,

DESSA WELLS

RCAC I Environmental

Regional Field Manager I Oregon

dessa.wells@rcac.org

360-558-2150 (cell)

RCAC is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender

|Iffiffi m$ffir
mK b dls klrl'slltuoh| F[rrm Cc*erfrr f[ lq, Ol rndllfi{

From: Brenda Ashcraft <i nfo@crescentsanitarydistrict. org>
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2024 2:2O PM

To: Dessa Wells <dessa.wells@rcac. org>
Cc: Alejandro Gildelatorre <Gil@biztaxes1120.com>
Subject: RE: CSD - Rate Study

Hi Dessa,

Please find the attached reports that you requested, please let me know if the format of the reports will work
for your needs. Please let me know if you have any questions.

For CSD's financial statements formaUpresentation has gone through several changes for the past 3 years
in an effort to meet present CSD and GAAP requirements.

Additionally, CSD is currently going through significant increases in expenses being forecasted in the
coming mdnths as a result of newly found operationaldeficiencies requiring studies by engineering
professionals and others resulting in additional maintenanceiupgrading cost due to faulty construction of the
exiting sewer system.

Itfranfr;ou anrfnafrg it a great [a!
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$tuntaXsfrdt

Offtu *touacr

CeE s4t-6s*9109

Ofi&: 541433-2951

!{ouw lMon4lun 9: 00am-J : Jhpn

Q,O, fuX265 -C}re$cerrt, qgff33

Froml Dessa Wells <dessa.wells@rcac.org>
Sent: Monday, October Zl,,2024g:06 pM
To: Brenda Ashcraft <info@crescentsanitarydistrict.org>
Subiect RE: CSD - Rate Study

Hello Brenda,

lSliH[Yh 
rawni and she shared that you were interested in moving fonrard with having a rate study

*S#i 
shared in our original conversations, we provide these Eervioes at no cost to the communities we

I shared with rawni, that we have a few questions about crescents readiness.
Does Crescent have an updated asset inventory? This will inctude a,comptete list of all of the system,scomponents, estimated remaining life, and.est!fia-teo c;;6:'iil; information is used to determine the coetof tuture repracement, and thoseu;G,iiloe inciuoeain i#iJi" projections.

FffiiTs $31'ilt?L".H.ll['l8,il sr'fri"n,t:fl?slH?fl:fl#r:rj"1;y"rl,jn--i,ili:fillbe ab,e to

Respectfully,

EXHIBIT G


